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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BLUELINX HOLDINGS INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND
COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

(In thousands, except per share data)

(unaudited)

Net sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Operating expenses:

Selling, general, and administrative

Depreciation and amortization

Total operating expenses

Operating loss

Non-operating expenses:

Interest expense

Other expense, net

Loss before provision for income taxes

Provision for income taxes

Net loss

Basic and diluted weighted average number of common shares outstanding
Basic and diluted net loss per share applicable to common stock

Comprehensive loss:
Net loss
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Unrealized gain from pension plan, net of taxes
Foreign currency translation
Total other comprehensive (loss) income
Comprehensive loss

See accompanying notes.

First Quarter

Period

from

January 5,

2014

to

April 5,

2014

$443,944
391,268
52,676

51,987
2,352
54,339
(1,663 )

6,454

160

8,277 )

331
$(8,608 )

85,187
$(0.10 )

$(8,608 )

115

(231 )

(116 )
$@8,724 )

Period from

December 30,

2012

to

March 30, 2013

$ 503,153
446,695
56,458

59,419
2,173

61,592
(5,134

7,192
110
(12,436
213
$ (12,649
66,714
$ (0.19

$ (12,649

718
(109
609

$ (12,040
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BLUELINX HOLDINGS INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

April 5,2014 January 4, 2014

(unaudited)
Assets:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,579 $ 5,034
Receivables, net 190,766 150,297
Inventories, net 261,006 223,580
Other current assets 25,756 22,814
Total current assets 485,107 401,725
Property, plant, and equipment:
Land and land improvements 41,182 41,176
Buildings 90,172 90,082
Machinery and equipment 76,672 73,004
Construction in progress 760 3,028
Property, plant, and equipment, at cost 208,786 207,290
Accumulated depreciation (98,344 ) (96,171
Property, plant, and equipment, net 110,442 111,119
Non-current deferred income tax assets, net 824 824
Other non-current assets 15,443 16,578
Total assets $ 611,816 $ 530,246
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 98,008 $ 60,363
Bank overdrafts 21,516 19,377
Accrued compensation 5,510 4,173
Current maturities of long-term debt 38,078 9,141
Deferred income taxes, net 823 823
Other current liabilities 12,414 12,949
Total current liabilities 176,349 106,826
Non-current liabilities:
Long-term debt 409,294 388,995
Other non-current liabilities 40,559 40,323
Total liabilities 626,202 536,144
Stockholders’ Deficit:
Common Stock, $0.01 par value, 200,000,000 shares authorized at April 5, 2014
and January 4, 2014; 87,602,613 and 86,545,000 shares issued at April 5, 2014 and
January 4, 2014, respectively. 877 866
Additional paid-in capital 251,374 251,150
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (16,409 ) (16,293
Accumulated deficit (250,228 ) (241,621
Total stockholders’ deficit (14,386 ) (5,898
Total liabilities and stockholders’ deficit $ 611,816 $ 530,246
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See accompanying notes.
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BLUELINX HOLDINGS INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

(unaudited)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operations:
Depreciation and amortization

Amortization of debt issuance costs

Write-off of debt issuance costs

Gain from sale of property

Restructuring payments

Intraperiod income tax allocation related to hourly pension plan
Pension expense

Share-based compensation expense

Increase in restricted cash related to insurance and other

Other

Changes in primary working capital components:
Receivables

Inventories

Accounts payable

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Property, plant and equipment investments
Proceeds from disposition of assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Excess tax benefits from share-based compensation arrangements
Repurchase of shares to satisfy employee tax withholdings
Repayments on the revolving credit facilities
Borrowings from the revolving credit facilities
Payments of principal on mortgage

Payments on capital lease obligations

Increase (decrease) in bank overdrafts

Increase in restricted cash related to the mortgage
Debt issuance costs

Proceeds from stock offering, less expenses paid
Net cash provided by financing activities
Increase in cash

Three Months Ended

April 5, 2014

$

Period from
January 5,
2014
to

(8,608

2,352
744
(210
(603
(76
225
690
(1,285
808
(5,963

(40,469
(37,426
37,743

(46,115

75
283
(492

(456
(99,146
149,191
(809
(570
2,139
(1,024
(75

(98
49,152
2,545

)

Period from
December 30,

2012
to

March 30, 2013

$

(12,649

2,173
946
119
(238

1,148
824
(361
(894
(8,932

(61,396
(89,595
64,084

(95,839

(955
195
(760

16
(1,206
(128,836
199,828
(646
(384
(6,298
(2,955
(2,715
39,892
96,696
97

~— N O N



Balance, beginning of period
Balance, end of period

Noncash transactions:
Capital leases
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See accompanying notes.

$

$

5,034
7,579

983

$

5,188
5,285
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BLUELINX HOLDINGS INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
April 5,2014

1. Basis of Presentation and Background
Basis of Presentation

BlueLinx Holdings Inc. has prepared the accompanying Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements, including its
accounts and the accounts of its wholly-owned subsidiaries, in accordance with the instructions to Form 10-Q, and
therefore they do not include all of the information and notes required by United States generally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”). These interim financial statements should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and
accompanying notes included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 4, 2014, as filed with

the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). Fiscal 2014 contains 52 weeks and fiscal 2013 contained 53 weeks.
Our fiscal quarters are based on a 5-4-4 week period, with the exception of the fourth fiscal quarter of fiscal years
containing 53 weeks, which are based on a 5-4-5 week period. BlueLinx Corporation is the wholly-owned operating
subsidiary of BlueLinx Holdings Inc. and is referred to herein as the “operating subsidiary” when necessary.

We believe the accompanying Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements reflect all adjustments, consisting only of
normal recurring adjustments and other nonrecurring adjustments disclosed in the subsequent notes to the
consolidated financial statements, necessary for a fair presentation of our financial position, results of operations and
cash flows for the periods presented. The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with
GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the Unaudited Consolidated
Financial Statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates and such differences
could be material. In addition, the operating results for interim periods may not be indicative of the results of
operations for a full year. We are exposed to fluctuations in quarterly sales volumes and expenses due to seasonal
factors, with the second and third quarters typically accounting for the highest sales volumes. These seasonal factors
are common in the building products distribution industry.

We are a leading distributor of building products in North America with approximately 1,700 employees. We offer
approximately 10,000 products from over 750 suppliers to service more than 11,500 customers nationwide, including
dealers, industrial manufacturers, manufactured housing producers and home improvement retailers. We operate our
distribution business from sales centers in Atlanta and Denver, and our current network of approximately 50
distribution centers.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue when the following criteria are met: persuasive evidence of an agreement exists, delivery has
occurred or services have been rendered, our price to the buyer is fixed and determinable and collectability is
reasonably assured. Delivery is not considered to have occurred until the customer takes title and assumes the risks
and rewards of ownership. The timing of revenue recognition is largely dependent on shipping terms. For sales
transactions designated as FOB (free on board) shipping point, revenue is recorded at the time of shipment. For sales
transactions designated FOB destination, revenue is recorded when the product is delivered to the customer’s delivery
site.
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All revenues are recorded gross. The key indicators used to determine when and how revenue is recorded are as
follows:

We are the primary obligor responsible for fulfillment and all other aspects of the customer relationship.
Title passes from BlueLinx, and we carry all risk of loss related to warehouse, third party (“reload”) inventory and
inventory shipped directly from vendors to our customers.
We are responsible for all product returns.
We control the selling price for all channels.
We select the supplier.
We bear all credit risk.

10
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In addition, we provide inventory to certain customers through pre-arranged agreements on a consignment basis.
Customer consigned inventory is maintained and stored by certain customers; however, ownership and risk of loss
remain with us. When the inventory is sold by the customer, we recognize revenue on a gross basis. Customer
consigned inventory at April 5, 2014 and January 4, 2014 was approximately $11.8 million and $10.1 million,
respectively.

All revenues are recorded after trade allowances, cash discounts and sales returns are deducted. Cash discounts and
sales returns are estimated using historical experience. Trade allowances are based on the estimated obligations and
historical experience.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments with maturity dates of less than three months when
purchased.

Restricted Cash

We had restricted cash of $14.0 million and $11.7 million at April 5, 2014 and January 4, 2014, respectively.
Restricted cash primarily includes amounts held in escrow related to our mortgage and insurance for workers’
compensation, auto liability, and general liability. Restricted cash is included in “Other current assets” and “Other
non-current assets” on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The table below provides the balances of each individual component in restricted cash as of April 5, 2014 and January

4, 2014 (in thousands):

April 5, January 4,
2014 2014
Cash in escrow:
Mortgage $ 1,024 $ —
Insurance 7,924 7,921
Other (primarily real estate related) 5,042 3,760
Total $ 13,990 $ 11,681

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Related Reserves

We evaluate the collectability of accounts receivable based on numerous factors, including past transaction history
with customers and their creditworthiness. We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for each aging category
on our aged trial balance, which is aged utilizing contractual terms, based on our historical loss experience. This
estimate is periodically adjusted when we become aware of specific customers’ potential inability to meet their
financial obligations (e.g., bankruptcy filing or other evidence of liquidity problems). As we determine that specific
balances ultimately will be uncollectible, we remove them from our aged trial balance. Additionally, we maintain

reserves for cash discounts that we expect customers to earn as well as expected returns. At April 5, 2014 and January

4, 2014, these reserves totaled $4.6 million and $4.4 million, respectively.

Inventory Valuation

11
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Inventories are carried at the lower of cost or market. The cost of all inventories is determined by the moving average

cost method. We have included all material charges directly or indirectly incurred in bringing inventory to its existing
condition and location. We evaluate our inventory value at the end of each quarter to ensure that first quality, actively
moving inventory, when viewed by category, is carried at the lower of cost or market. At April 5, 2014 and January 4,
2014, the market value of our inventory exceeded its cost.

Additionally, we maintain a reserve for the estimated value impairment associated with damaged, excess and obsolete
inventory. The damaged, excess and obsolete reserve generally includes discontinued items or inventory that has turn
days in excess of 270 days, excluding new items during their product launch. At April 5, 2014 and January 4, 2014,
our damaged, excess and obsolete inventory reserves were $1.8 million. During the second quarter of fiscal 2013,
approximately $1.0 million was recorded in “Cost of sales” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and
Comprehensive Loss for damaged, excess and obsolete inventory related to the closure of five distribution centers.
There was less than $0.1 million of this reserve remaining as of April 5, 2014 and $0.3 million of this reserve
remaining as of January 4, 2014. We discuss the closure or ceasing of operations of these distribution centers, which
is included in our 2013 restructuring plan (the “2013 restructuring”), further in “Note 3 — Restructuring Charges”.

7
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Consignment Inventory

We enter into consignment inventory agreements with our vendors. This vendor consignment inventory relationship
allows us to obtain and store vendor inventory at our warehouses and reload facilities; however, ownership and risk of
loss generally remains with the vendor. When the inventory is sold, we are required to pay the vendor, and we
simultaneously take and transfer ownership from the vendor to the customer.

Consideration Received from Vendors and Consideration Paid to Customers

Each year, we enter into agreements with many of our vendors providing for inventory purchase rebates, generally
based on the achievement of specified volume purchasing levels. We also receive rebates related to price protection
and various marketing allowances that are common industry practice. We accrue for the receipt of vendor rebates
based on purchases, and also reduce inventory value to reflect the net acquisition cost (purchase price less expected
purchase rebates). At April 5, 2014 and January 4, 2014, the vendor rebate receivable totaled $5.9 million and

$7.6 million, respectively.

In addition, we enter into agreements with many of our customers to offer customer rebates, generally based on
achievement of specified volume sales levels and various marketing allowances that are common industry practice.
We accrue for the payment of customer rebates based on sales to the customer, and also reduce sales value to reflect
the net sales (sales price less expected customer rebates). At April 5, 2014 and January 4, 2014, the customer rebate
payable totaled $2.7 million and $6.3 million, respectively.

Loss per Common Share

We calculate our basic loss per share by dividing net loss by the weighted average number of common shares and
participating securities outstanding for the period. Restricted stock granted by us to certain of our officers, directors,
and certain other employees participate in dividends on the same basis as common shares and are non-forfeitable by
the holder. The unvested restricted stock contains non-forfeitable rights to dividends or dividend equivalents. As a
result, these share-based awards meet the definition of a participating security and are included in the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding, pursuant to the two-class method, for the periods that present net
income. The two-class method is an earnings allocation formula that treats a participating security as having rights to
earnings that would otherwise have been available to common stockholders.

Given that the restricted stockholders do not have a contractual obligation to participate in the losses and the inclusion
of such unvested restricted shares in our basic and dilutive per share calculations would be anti-dilutive, we have not
included these amounts in our weighted average number of common shares outstanding for periods in which we report
a net loss. Therefore, we have not included 2,265,072 and 2,892,936 of unvested shares of restricted stock that had
the right to participate in dividends in our basic and dilutive calculations for the first quarter of fiscal 2014 and the
first quarter of fiscal 2013, respectively.

Except when the effect would be anti-dilutive, the diluted earnings per share calculation includes the dilutive effect of
the assumed exercise of stock options and performance shares using the treasury stock method. There were no grants
of performance shares during the first quarter of fiscal 2014. During the first quarter of fiscal 2013, we granted
1,872,852 performance shares under our 2006 Long-Term Equity Incentive Plan (the “2006 Plan”) in which shares are
issuable upon satisfaction of certain performance criteria. As of April 5, 2014 and March 30, 2013, we assumed that
1,699,233 and 1,749,815, respectively, of the performance shares will vest, net of forfeitures and vesting, as of first
quarter fiscal 2014 and first quarter fiscal 2013. We are assuming that all but 311,653 of these performance shares

13
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outstanding as of April 5, 2014 will vest based on our assumption that meeting the performance criteria is probable.
The remaining 311,653 performance shares outstanding as of April 5, 2014 will vest in the second quarter of fiscal
2014 due to the completion of the vesting term and the Compensation Committee’s discretionary decision on
December 30, 2013 to waive the performance criteria due to the significant restructuring activities undertaken by the
Company during the vesting period and vest these performance shares regardless of satisfaction of the performance
criteria. The performance shares are not considered participating shares under the two-class method because they do
not receive any non-transferable rights to dividends. The performance shares we assumed will vest were not included
in the computation of diluted earnings per share calculation because they were antidilutive.

Except when the effect would be anti-dilutive, the diluted earnings per share calculation includes the dilutive effect
of the assumed exercise of stock options and performance shares using the treasury stock method. As we experienced
losses in all periods, basic and diluted loss per share are computed by dividing net loss by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding for the period. For the first quarter of fiscal 2014 we excluded 4,748,805 of
unvested share-based awards, which includes excluding the assumed exercise of 784,500 unexpired stock options and
1,699,233 performance shares unvested share-based awards, from the diluted earnings per share calculation because
they were anti-dilutive. For the first quarter of fiscal 2013, we excluded 5,512,898 of unvested share-based awards,
which includes excluding the assumed exercise of 870,147 unexpired stock options and 1,749,815 performance
shares, from the diluted earnings per share calculation because they were anti-dilutive.

8
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Share-Based Compensation

We have two stock-based compensation plans covering officers, directors, certain employees and consultants: the
2004 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2004 Plan”) and the 2006 Plan. The plans are designed to motivate and retain
individuals who are responsible for the attainment of our primary long-term performance goals. The plans provide a
means whereby our employees and directors develop a sense of proprietorship and personal involvement in our
development and financial success and encourage them to devote their best efforts to our business. Although we do
not have a formal policy on the matter, we issue new shares of our common stock to participants upon the exercise of
options, upon the granting of restricted stock or upon the vesting of performance shares, out of the total amount of
common shares authorized for issuance under either the 2004 Plan or the 2006 Plan. During the first quarter of fiscal
2014, the Compensation Committee granted 1,114,311 restricted shares of our common stock to certain of our
officers, directors, and certain other employees. Restricted shares of 287,616 vested in the first quarter of fiscal 2014
due to the completion of the vesting term. Performance shares of 386,541 vested in the first quarter of fiscal 2014 due
to the completion of the vesting term and the Compensation Committee’s discretionary decision on December 30, 2013
to waive the performance criteria due to the significant restructuring activities undertaken by the Company during the
vesting period and vest these performance shares regardless of satisfaction of the performance criteria.

We recognize compensation expense equal to the grant-date fair value for all share-based payment awards that are
expected to vest. This expense is recorded on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the entire award,
unless the awards are subject to market or performance conditions, in which case we recognize compensation expense
over the requisite service period of each separate vesting tranche to the extent the occurrence of such conditions are
probable. All compensation expense related to our share-based payment awards is recorded in “Selling, general, and
administrative” expense in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss. For the first quarter
of fiscal 2014 and for the first quarter of fiscal 2013, our total share-based compensation expense was $0.7 million and
$0.8 million, respectively.

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are provided using the liability method. Accordingly, deferred income taxes are recognized for
differences between the income tax and financial reporting bases of our assets and liabilities based on enacted tax laws
and tax rates applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected to affect taxable income. We recognize a
valuation allowance, when based on the weight of all available evidence, we believe it is more likely than not that our
deferred tax assets will not be realized. In evaluating our ability to recover our deferred income tax assets, we
considered available positive and negative evidence, including our past operating results, our ability to carryback
losses against prior taxable income, the existence of cumulative losses in the most recent years, our forecast of future
taxable income and an excess of appreciated assets over the tax basis of our net assets. In estimating future taxable
income, we developed assumptions including the amount of future state and federal pretax operating and
non-operating income, the reversal of temporary differences and the implementation of feasible and prudent tax
planning strategies. These assumptions required significant judgment about the forecasts of future taxable

income. We considered all of the available positive and negative evidence during the first quarter of fiscal 2014, and
based on the weight of available evidence, we recorded an additional deferred tax asset and valuation allowance of
$3.2 million relating to our current period net operating losses, which resulted in a total net deferred tax asset of $91.5
million with a valuation allowance of a corresponding amount as of April 5, 2014. As of January 4, 2014, our total
net deferred tax asset was $88.3 million with a valuation allowance of a corresponding amount.

If the realization of deferred tax assets in the future is considered more likely than not, a reduction to the valuation
allowance related to the deferred tax assets would increase net income in the period such determination is made. The
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amount of the deferred tax asset considered realizable is based on significant estimates, and it is possible that changes
in these estimates could materially affect the financial condition and results of operations. Our effective tax rate may
vary from period to period based on changes in estimated taxable income or loss; changes to the valuation allowance;
changes to federal or state tax laws; and as a result of acquisitions.

We generally believe that the positions taken on previously filed tax returns are more likely than not to be sustained
by the taxing authorities. We have recorded income tax and related interest liabilities where we believe our position
may not be sustained. Such amounts are disclosed in Note 5 in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year-ended
January 4, 2014. There have been no material changes to our tax positions during the first quarter of fiscal 2014.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
We consider whether there are indicators of potential impairment of long-lived assets, primarily property, plant, and
equipment, on a quarterly basis. Indicators of impairment include current period losses combined with a history of

losses, management’s decision to exit a facility, reductions in the fair market value of real properties and changes in
other circumstances that indicate the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.

9
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Our evaluation of long-lived assets is performed at the lowest level of identifiable cash flows, which is generally the
individual distribution facility. In the event of indicators of impairment, the assets of the distribution facility are
evaluated by comparing the facility’s undiscounted cash flows over the estimated useful life of the asset, which ranges
between 5-40 years, to its carrying amount. If the carrying amount is greater than the undiscounted cash flows, an
impairment loss is recognized for the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the estimated fair
market value. Impairment losses are recorded as a component of “Selling, general, and administrative” expenses in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss.

Our estimate of undiscounted cash flows is subject to assumptions that affect estimated operating income at a
distribution facility level. These assumptions are related to future sales, margin growth rates, economic conditions,
market competition and inflation. In the event that undiscounted cash flows do not exceed the carrying amount of a
facility, our estimates of fair market value are generally based on market appraisals and our experience with related
market transactions. We use a two year average of cash flows based on 2013 EBITDA and 2014 projected EBITDA,
which includes a growth factor assumption, to estimate undiscounted cash flows. In our impairment analysis we use
level 3 measurement assumptions in the fair value hierarchy. We define the measurement assumptions in Note 13 of
the Consolidated Financial Statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January
4,2014.

No impairment indicators appear to be present that would result in material reductions to our January 4, 2014
projected undiscounted cash flows, which exceeded our carrying amount in all cases during the performance of our
January 4, 2014 impairment analysis.

Self-Insurance

It is our policy to self-insure, up to certain limits, traditional risks including workers’ compensation, comprehensive
general liability, and auto liability. Our self-insured deductible for each claim involving workers’ compensation and
auto liability is limited to $0.8 million and $2.0 million, respectively. Our self-insured retention for each claim
involving comprehensive general liability (including product liability claims) is limited to $0.8 million. We are also
self-insured up to certain limits for certain other insurable risks, primarily physical loss to property ($0.1 million per
occurrence) and the majority of our medical benefit plans ($0.3 million per occurrence). Insurance coverage is
maintained for catastrophic property and casualty exposures as well as those risks required to be insured by law or
contract. A provision for claims under this self-insured program, based on our estimate of the aggregate liability for
claims incurred, is revised annually. The estimate is derived from both internal and external sources including but not
limited to actuarial estimates. The actuarial estimates are subject to uncertainty from various sources, including,
among others, changes in claim reporting patterns, claim settlement patterns, judicial decisions, legislation, and
economic conditions. Although we believe that the actuarial estimates are reasonable, significant differences related to
the items noted above could materially affect our self-insurance obligations, future expense and cash flow. At April 5,
2014 and January 4, 2014, the self-insurance reserves totaled $7.0 million and $6.9 million, respectively.

New Accounting Standards

In the third quarter of fiscal 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) issued an amendment to
previously issued guidance which requires entities to present unrecognized tax benefits as a decrease in a net operating
loss, a similar tax loss or a tax credit carryforward, if certain criteria are met. The determination of whether a deferred
tax asset is available is based on the unrecognized tax benefit and the deferred tax asset that exists at the reporting date
and presumes disallowance of the tax position at the reporting date. The amendment, which did not materially impact
our financial statements, is effective for public companies in fiscal years, and interim periods within those years,

17
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beginning after December 15, 2013. We have adopted this guidance during the first quarter of fiscal 2014.

There were no other accounting pronouncements adopted during the first quarter of fiscal 2014 that had a material
impact on our financial statements.

Reclassifications
During the first quarter of fiscal 2014, we have broken out certain amounts, which had historically been presented as
“Other” changes in the “Cash flows from operating activities” to conform the historical presentation to the current and

future presentation.

10
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3. Restructuring Charges

We account for exit and disposal costs by recognizing a liability for costs associated with an exit or disposal activity at
fair value in the period in which it is incurred or when the entity ceases using the right conveyed by a contract (i.e., the
right to use a leased property). We account for severance and outplacement costs by recognizing a liability for
employees’ rights to post-employment benefits when management has committed to a plan, due to the existence of a
post employment benefit agreement. These costs are included in “Selling, general, and administrative” expenses in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss for the first quarter of fiscal 2014 and the first

quarter of fiscal 2013, and in “Accrued compensation” on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at April 5, 2014 and January
4,2014.

2013 Facility Lease Obligation and Severance Costs

During the second quarter of fiscal 2013, we announced the 2013 restructuring which included the realignment of
headquarters resources and the strategic review of our distribution centers. This review resulted in the Company
designating five distribution centers to be sold or closed. These distribution centers were closed or ceased operations
during the third quarter of fiscal 2013. During the second quarter of fiscal 2013, we also announced that George R.
Judd no longer would serve as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company (the “change in executive
leadership”).

The table below summarizes the balance of reduction in force activities and the related accrued facility lease
obligation reserve and the changes in the accrual for the first quarter of fiscal 2014 (in thousands):

Reduction in

Force Facility Lease

Activities Obligation Total
Balance at January 4, 2014 $ 2,550 $ 928 $ 3,478
Charges — — —
Assumption changes (29 ) 2 27 )
Payments (500 ) (103 ) (603 )
Accretion of liability — 8 8
Balance at April 5, 2014 $ 2,021 $ 835 $ 2,856

During the third quarter of fiscal 2011, we entered into an amendment to our corporate headquarters lease in Atlanta,
Georgia related to the unoccupied 4100 building, which was exited during fiscal 2007. The final payment related to
this amendment was made during the first quarter of fiscal 2014 in the amount of $0.3 million.

4. Assets Held for Sale and Net Gain on Disposition

We have certain assets that we have designated as assets held for sale. At the time of designation, we ceased
recognizing depreciation expense on these assets. As of April 5, 2014, and January 4, 2014, total assets held for sale
were $2.6 million and were included in “Other current assets” in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. During the first
quarter of fiscal 2014 we did not sell any real properties classified as held for sale. However, we recognized an
additional gain related to our Fremont, California location during the first quarter of 2014 of approximately $0.2
million. The gain was related to proceeds previously held in an escrow account for certain environmental remediation
procedures. We continue to actively market all properties that are designated as held for sale.

5. Employee Benefits
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Most of our hourly employees participate in noncontributory defined benefit pension plans. These include a plan that
is administered solely by us (the “hourly pension plan”) and union-administered multiemployer plans. Our funding
policy for the hourly pension plan is based on actuarial calculations and the applicable requirements of federal

law. Benefits under the majority of plans for hourly employees (including multiemployer plans) are primarily related
to years of service. We believe that our portion of each multiemployer pension plan is immaterial to our financial
statements and that we represent an immaterial portion of the total contributions and future obligations of these plans.

Net periodic pension cost for our pension plans included the following (in thousands):

First Quarter
Period from
January 5,
2014 Period from December 30,

to April 5, 2014 2012 to March 30, 2013
Service cost $ 264 $ 548
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 1,280 1,188
Expected return on plan assets (1,510 ) (1,306 )
Amortization of unrecognized loss 191 718
Net periodic pension cost $ 225 $ 1,148

11
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The Company’s minimum required contribution for plan year 2012 was $3.2 million. In an effort to preserve
additional cash for operations, we applied for a waiver from the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) for our

2012 minimum required contribution. The Company received approval from the IRS during the first quarter of fiscal
2014 granting the waiver. As the Company was granted the requested waiver, our contributions for 2012 will be
amortized over the following five years, increasing our future minimum required contributions.

The Company’s minimum required contribution for plan year 2013 was estimated to be $6.0 million, including the
impact of the waiver. During the second quarter of fiscal 2013, we contributed certain qualifying employer real
property to the hourly pension plan. The properties, including certain land and buildings, are located in Charleston,
S.C. and Buffalo, N.Y., and were valued at approximately $6.8 million by independent appraisals prior to the
contribution. The contribution was recorded by the hourly pension plan at the fair value of $6.8 million. We are
leasing back the contributed properties for an initial term of twenty years with two five-year extension options and
continue to use the properties in our distribution operations. Each lease provides us a right of first refusal on any
subsequent sale by the hourly pension plan and a repurchase option. The hourly pension plan engaged an independent
fiduciary who evaluated the transaction on behalf of the hourly pension plan, negotiated the terms of the property
contribution and the leases, and also manages the properties on behalf of the hourly pension plan. As the Company
was granted the requested waiver, the property contribution was designated to the 2013 plan year.

We determined that the contribution of the properties does not meet the accounting definition of a plan asset within
the scope of relevant accounting guidance. Accordingly, the contributed properties are not considered a contribution
for financial reporting purposes and, as a result, are not included in plan assets and have no impact on the net pension
liability recorded on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. We continue to depreciate the carrying value of the properties
in our financial statements, and no gain or loss was recognized at the contribution date for financial reporting
purposes. Rent payments will be made on a monthly basis and will be recorded as contributions to the hourly pension
plan, of which $0.1 million has been recorded as of April 5, 2014 for fiscal 2014. These rental payments will reduce
our unfunded obligation to the hourly pension plan.

The Company’s minimum required contribution for plan year 2014 is approximately $5.1 million. We currently are
required to make three quarterly cash contributions during fiscal 2014 of $1.5 million each and twelve monthly lease
payments associated with the 2013 property contribution of less than $0.1 million each.

6. Revolving Credit Facilities

We have our U.S. revolving credit facility agreement (the “U.S. revolving credit facility””) with several lenders including
Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, successor by merger to Wachovia Bank, National Association (“Wells Fargo
Bank™), dated August 4, 2006, as amended. The U.S. revolving credit facility has a final maturity of April 15, 2016

and maximum available credit of $447.5 million. The U.S. revolving credit facility also includes an additional

$75 million uncommitted accordion credit facility, which permits us to increase the maximum available credit up to
$522.5 million.

On March 14, 2014, we entered into an amendment to our U.S. revolving credit facility, in the form of a separate
tranche, which became effective on that date. The most significant of the changes included in the amendment is the
addition of up to $20.0 million in borrowing capacity for a period of up to 180 days from the effective date, which
increased the maximum available credit of the U.S. revolving credit facility to $467.5 million. This additional
available credit of $20.0 million was utilized in the first quarter of fiscal 2014. In conjunction with this amendment,
we incurred $0.1 million of debt issuance fees that were capitalized and are being amortized over the 180 day term. In
addition, pursuant to the $20.0 million tranche, specific adjustments were made to the excess availability threshold
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calculation, the interest rate, and the fixed charge coverage ratio.

On June 28, 2013, we entered into an amendment to our U.S. revolving credit facility, which became effective on that
date and pursuant to which certain components of the borrowing base calculation and excess liquidity calculation were
adjusted. The most significant of the changes included in the amendment is the addition of PNC Bank, National
Association (“PNC”) as a lender and their additional loan commitment of $25.0 million, which at that time increased the
maximum availability of the U.S. revolving credit facility to $447.5 million. The new terms of this amended

agreement are described in this footnote. In conjunction with this amendment, we incurred $0.1 million of debt fees
that were capitalized and are being amortized over the amended debt term.

12
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On March 29, 2013, we entered into an amendment to our U.S. revolving credit facility, which became effective on
that date and pursuant to which certain components of the borrowing base calculation and excess liquidity calculation
were adjusted. The most significant of the changes included in the amendment are extending the final maturity of the
U.S. revolving credit facility, increasing the maximum available credit under the facility and adjusting the excess
availability threshold calculation. In conjunction with this amendment, we incurred $2.8 million of debt fees that
were capitalized and are being amortized over the amended debt term.

On March 27, 2013, we concluded the 2013 Rights Offering. The 2013 Rights Offering was fully subscribed and
resulted in net proceeds of approximately $38.6 million. We issued 22.9 million shares of stock to our stockholders in
conjunction with the 2013 Rights Offering.

As of April 5, 2014, we had outstanding borrowings of $258.4 million and excess availability of $87.7 million under
the terms of our U.S. revolving credit facility. The interest rate on the U.S. revolving credit facility was 3.8% at April
5, 2014, including the impact of the $20.0 million tranche. As of January 4, 2014, we had outstanding borrowings of
$207.9 million and excess availability of $44.5 million under the terms of our U.S. revolving credit facility. The
interest rate on the U.S. revolving credit facility was 3.7% at January 4, 2014. As of April 5, 2014 and January 4,
2014, we had outstanding letters of credit totaling $3.6 million, for the purposes of securing collateral requirements
related to guaranteeing lease and certain other obligations. The $3.6 million in outstanding letters of credit as of April
5, 2014 does not include an additional $1.5 million fully collateralized letter of credit securing certain insurance
obligations that was issued outside of the U.S. revolving credit facility.

As of April 5, 2014, our U.S. revolving credit facility, as amended, contains customary negative covenants and
restrictions for asset based loans, including a requirement that we maintain a fixed charge coverage ratio of 1.1 to 1.0
in the event our excess availability falls below the greater of $33.2 million during the time the $20.0 million increase
is outstanding and $31.8 million at all times thereafter or the amount equal to 12.5% of the lesser of the borrowing
base or $467.5 million during the time the $20.0 million increase is outstanding, and $447.5 million at all times
thereafter (the “Excess Availability Threshold”). The fixed charge coverage ratio is calculated as EBITDA divided by
the sum of cash payments for income taxes, interest expense, cash dividends, principal payments on debt, and capital
expenditures. EBITDA is defined as BlueLinx Corporation’s net income before interest and tax expense, depreciation
and amortization expense, and other non-cash charges. The fixed charge coverage ratio requirement only applies to us
when excess availability under our amended U.S. revolving credit facility is less than the Excess Availability
Threshold on any date. As of April 5, 2014 and through the time of the filing of this Form 10-Q, we were in
compliance with all covenants under the U.S. revolving credit facility. We are required to maintain the Excess
Availability Threshold in order to avoid being required to meet certain financial ratios and triggering additional limits
on capital expenditures. Our lowest level of fiscal month-end availability as of the twelve month period ended April
5, 2014 was $44.5 million. We do not anticipate our excess availability in fiscal 2014 will drop below the Excess
Availability Threshold. Should our excess availability fall below the Excess Availability Threshold on any date,
however, we would not meet the required fixed charge coverage ratio covenant with our current operating results.

In the event that excess availability falls below $38.7 million during the time the $20.0 million increase is outstanding
and $37.1 million at all times thereafter, or the amount equal to 15% of the lesser of the borrowing base or $467.5
million during the time the $20.0 million increase is outstanding, and $447.5 million at all times thereafter, the U.S.
revolving credit facility gives the lenders the right to dominion of our bank accounts. This would not make the
underlying debt callable by the lender and may not change our ability to borrow on the U.S. revolving credit

facility. However, we would be required to reclassify the “Long-term debt” to “Current maturities of long-term debt” on
our Consolidated Balance Sheet. In addition, we would be required to maintain a springing lock-box arrangement
where customer remittances go directly to a lock-box maintained by our lenders and then are forwarded to our general
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bank accounts. Our amended U.S. revolving credit facility does not contain a subjective acceleration clause, which
would allow our lenders to accelerate the scheduled maturities of our debt or to cancel our agreement.

On August 16, 2013, we entered into an amendment to our Canadian revolving credit facility (the “Canadian revolving
credit facility”), which became effective on that date. The Amendment modifies the maturity date under the Credit
Agreement to the earlier of (i) August 12, 2016 or the (ii) maturity date of the U.S. revolving credit facility. All other
terms of the Canadian revolving credit facility remain the same.

As of April 5, 2014, we had outstanding borrowings of $2.8 million and excess availability of $1.6 million under the
terms of our Canadian revolving credit facility. As of January 4, 2014, we had outstanding borrowings of $3.3 million
and excess availability of $1.3 million under the terms of our Canadian revolving credit facility. The interest rate on
the Canadian revolving credit facility was 4.0% at April 5, 2014 and January 4, 2014. The Canadian revolving credit
facility contains customary covenants and events of default for asset-based credit agreements of this type, including
the requirement for BlueLinx Building Products Canada Ltd. (“BlueLinx Canada”) to maintain a minimum adjusted
tangible net worth of $3.9 million and for that entity’s capital expenditures not to exceed 120% of the amount budgeted
in a given year. As of April 5, 2014 and through the time of the filing of this Form 10-Q, we were in compliance with
all covenants under this facility.
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7. Mortgage

We have a ten-year mortgage loan with the German American Capital Corporation. The mortgage matures July 1,
2016 and is secured by 50 distribution facilities. The stated interest rate on the mortgage is fixed at 6.35%. German
American Capital Corporation assigned half of its interest in the mortgage loan to Wells Fargo Bank and both lenders
securitized their Notes in separate commercial mortgage backed securities pools in 2006. As of April 5, 2014 and
January 4, 2014, the balance on our mortgage loan was $186.1 million and $186.9 million, respectively.

The mortgage loan required interest-only payments through June 2011, at which time we began making payments on
the outstanding principal balance. The balance of the loan outstanding at the end of the ten year term will then become
due and payable. The principal will be paid in the following increments (in thousands):

2014 1,793
2015 2,586
2016 181,756
2017 —
2018 —
Thereafter —
Total $186,135

On September 19, 2012, we entered into an amendment to our mortgage agreement, which provided for the immediate
prepayment of approximately $11.8 million of the indebtedness under the mortgage agreement without incurring a
prepayment premium from cash currently held as collateral under the mortgage agreement. In addition, on the last
business day of each calendar quarter, starting with the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012, additional funds held as collateral
under the mortgage agreement will be used to prepay indebtedness under the mortgage agreement, without
prepayment premium, up to an aggregate additional prepayment of $10.0 million. Thereafter, any cash remaining in
the collateral account under the mortgage agreement, up to an aggregate of $10.0 million, will be released to the
Company on the last business day of each calendar quarter through the third quarter of fiscal 2014. All funds released
pursuant to these provisions may only be used by the Company to pay for usual and customary operating

expenses. During the periods described above in which cash in the collateral account is used to either prepay
indebtedness under the mortgage agreement or released to the Company, the lenders will not release any of the cash
collateral to the Company for specified capital expenditures as previously provided under the mortgage

agreement. Under the terms of our mortgage, we are required to transfer certain funds to be held as collateral.
Approximately $3.1 million of cash held in collateral were released to the Company during the first quarter of fiscal
2014 to pay for usual and customary operating expenses. We expect to transfer approximately $13.3 million into the
mortgage escrow as collateral during the next twelve month period, approximately $1.3 million of which will be
remitted to us on a quarterly basis to pay for usual and customary operating expenses, in accordance with the
mortgage agreement.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2013, we sold our sales center in Denver, Colorado and increased the restricted cash
related to our mortgage by $8.4 million, which represents the allocated mortgage related to the property. During the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2013, we sold our Sioux Falls, South Dakota facility and increased the restricted cash related to
our mortgage by $1.9 million, which represents the allocated mortgage related to the property. This restricted cash for
both locations was used to pay down the outstanding principal of the mortgage in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013.

8. Fair Value Measurements
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We determine a fair value measurement based on the assumptions a market participant would use in pricing an asset
or liability. The fair value measurement guidance established a three level hierarchy making a distinction between
market participant assumptions based on (i) unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in an active
market (Level 1), (ii) quoted prices in markets that are not active or inputs that are observable either directly or
indirectly for substantially the full term of the asset or liability (Level 2), and (iii) prices or valuation techniques that
require inputs that are both unobservable and significant to the overall fair value measurement (Level 3).
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Carrying amounts for our financial instruments are not significantly different from their fair value, with the exception
of our mortgage. To determine the fair value of our mortgage, we used a discounted cash flow model. We believe the
mortgage fair value valuation to be Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy, as the valuation model has inputs that are
observable for substantially the full term of the liability. Assumptions critical to our fair value measurements in the
period are present value factors used in determining fair value and an interest rate. At April 5, 2014, the discounted
carrying amount and fair value of our mortgage was $186.3 million and $186.0 million, respectively. At January 4,
2014, the discounted carrying amount and fair value of our mortgage was $186.9 million and $186.6 million,
respectively.

9. Related Party Transactions

Cerberus Capital Management, L.P., our equity sponsor, retains consultants that specialize in operations management
and support and who provide Cerberus with consulting advice concerning portfolio companies in which funds and
accounts managed by Cerberus or its affiliates have invested. From time to time, Cerberus makes the services of these
consultants available to Cerberus portfolio companies. We believe that the terms of these consulting arrangements are
favorable to us, or, alternatively, are materially consistent with those terms that would have been obtained by us in an
arrangement with an unaffiliated third party. We have normal service, purchase and sales arrangements with other
entities that are owned or controlled by Cerberus. We believe that these transactions are not material to our results of
operations or financial position.

10. Commitments and Contingencies
Legal Proceedings

During the first quarter of fiscal 2014, there were no material changes to our previously disclosed legal proceedings.
Additionally, we are, and from time to time may be, a party to routine legal proceedings incidental to the operation of
our business. The outcome of any pending or threatened proceedings is not expected to have a material adverse effect
on our financial condition, operating results or cash flows, based on our current understanding of the relevant facts.
Legal expenses incurred related to these contingencies are generally expensed as incurred.

Environmental and Legal Matters

From time to time, we are involved in various proceedings incidental to our businesses and we are subject to a variety
of environmental and pollution control laws and regulations in all jurisdictions in which we operate. Although the
ultimate outcome of these proceedings cannot be determined with certainty, based on presently available information
management believes that adequate reserves have been established for probable losses with respect thereto.
Management further believes that the ultimate outcome of these matters could be material to operating results in any
given quarter but will not have a materially adverse effect on our long-term financial condition, our results of
operations, or our cash flows.

Collective Bargaining Agreements
As of April 5, 2014, approximately 34% of our employees were represented by various labor unions. As of April 5,
2014, we had 38 collective bargaining agreements, of which 6 are up for renewal in fiscal 2014. As of April 5, 2014,

we have renegotiated one of the agreements, which became effective in the first quarter of fiscal 2014. We consider
our relationship with our employees generally to be good.
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11. Subsequent Events

On May 8, 2014, we announced that Ms. Susan C. O’Farrell will serve as Senior Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer, Treasurer and Principal Accounting Officer, effective as of May 19, 2014. In such role Ms. O’Farrell will also
serve as our principal financial and principal accounting officer. Mr. H. Douglas Goforth, our current Senior Vice
President, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Principal Accounting Officer, is expected to serve in an advisory
capacity through June 1, 2014 in order to assist with the transition.

We are not aware of any significant events, other than those disclosed above, that occurred subsequent to the balance
sheet date but prior to the filing of this report that would have a material impact on our Consolidated Financial
Statements.

12. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Comprehensive loss is a measure of income which includes both net loss and other comprehensive (loss) income.
Other comprehensive (loss) income results from items deferred from recognition into our Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive Loss. Accumulated other comprehensive loss is separately presented on our
Consolidated Balance Sheets as part of common stockholders’ deficit. Other comprehensive (loss) income was $(0.1)

million for the quarter ended April 5, 2014 and was $0.6 million for the quarter ended March 30, 2013.
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The changes in accumulated balances for each component of other comprehensive (loss) income for the quarter ended
April 5, 2014 were as follows (in thousands):

Defined
Foreign benefit
currency, pension
net plan, net of Other, net of
of tax tax tax Total
Beginning balance $1,636 $(18,141 ) $ 212 $(16,293 )
Other comprehensive loss before reclassification (231 ) — — (231 )
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive loss, net of tax — 115 — 115
Current-period other comprehensive (loss) income, net of
tax (231 ) 115 — (116 )
Ending balance, net of tax $1,405 $(18,026 ) $ 212 $(16,409 )

The changes in accumulated balances for each component of other comprehensive (loss) income for the quarter ended
March 30, 2013 were as follows (in thousands):

Defined
Foreign benefit
currency, pension
net plan, net of Other, net of
of tax tax tax Total
Beginning balance $1,797 $(32,051 ) $ 212 $(30,042 )
Other comprehensive loss before reclassification (109 ) — — (109 )
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive loss, net of tax — 718 — 718
Current-period other comprehensive (loss) income, net of
tax (109 ) 718 — 609
Ending balance $1,688 $(31,333 ) $ 212 $(29,433 )

Reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive loss in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and
Comprehensive Loss for the quarter ended April 5, 2014 were as follows (in thousands):

Details about accumulated other ~ Amount reclassified from Affected line item in the
comprehensive loss accumulated other statement where net
components comprehensive loss income is presented
Amortization of defined benefit
pension items:

Actuarial loss $ 191 Total before tax
Tax impact 76 Tax impact (1)
Total, net of tax $ 115 Net of tax (2)

(1) We allocated income tax expense to accumulated other comprehensive loss into the Consolidated Statements of
Operations to the extent income was recorded in accumulated other comprehensive loss and we have a loss from
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continuing operations.

(2) These accumulated other comprehensive loss components, related to the hourly pension plan, are included in the
computation of net periodic pension cost.

Reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive loss in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and
Comprehensive Loss for the quarter ended March 30, 2013 were as follows (in thousands):

Details about accumulated other ~ Amount reclassified from Affected line item in the
comprehensive loss accumulated other statement where net
components comprehensive loss income is presented
Amortization of defined benefit
pension items:

Actuarial loss $ 718 Total before tax
Tax impact — Tax impact (1)
Total, net of tax $ 718 Net of tax (2)

(1) There was no tax effect for this accumulated other comprehensive loss component item due to the fact that there
was no intraperiod income tax allocation and the deferred tax benefit was fully offset by a valuation allowance.

16
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(2) These accumulated other comprehensive loss components are included in the computation of net periodic pension
cost. See Note 5 for additional details.

13. Unaudited Supplemental Consolidating Financial Statements

The consolidating financial information as of April 5, 2014 and January 4, 2014 is provided due to restrictions in our
revolving credit facility that limit distributions by BlueLinx Corporation, our operating company and our
wholly-owned subsidiary, to us, which, in turn, may limit our ability to pay dividends to holders of our common stock
(see our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 4, 2014, for a more detailed discussion of these
restrictions and the terms of the facility). Also included in the supplemental consolidated financial statements are
fifty-one single member limited liability companies, which are wholly owned by us (the “LLC subsidiaries”). The LLC
subsidiaries own certain warehouse properties that are occupied by BlueLinx Corporation, each under the terms of a
master lease agreement. The warehouse properties collateralize our mortgage loan and are not available to satisfy the
debts and other obligations of either us or BlueLinx Corporation. Certain changes have been made to the prior year
presentation to conform to the current year presentation.

The consolidating statement of operations for BlueLinx Holdings Inc. for the period from January 5, 2014 to April 5,
2014 follows (in thousands):

BlueLinx

BlueLinx Corporation

Holdings and LLC

Inc. Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
Net sales $— $ 443,944 $6,666 $ (6,666 ) $ 443,944
Cost of sales — 391,268 — — 391,268
Gross profit — 52,676 6,666 (6,666 ) 52,676
Operating expenses (income):
Selling, general, and administrative 1,433 57,260 40 ) (6,666 ) 51,987
Depreciation and amortization — 1,549 803 — 2,352
Total operating expenses (income) 1,433 58,809 763 (6,666 ) 54,339
Operating (loss) income (1,433 ) (6,133 ) 5,903 — (1,663 )
Non-operating expenses (income):
Interest expense — 3,123 3,331 — 6,454
Other expense (income), net — 161 (1 ) — 160
(Loss) income before (benefit from)
provision for income taxes (1,433 ) (9,417 ) 2,573 — (8,277 )
(Benefit from) provision for income taxes (36 ) 303 64 — 331
Equity in (loss) income of subsidiaries (7,211 ) — — 7,211 —
Net (loss) income $(8,608 ) $(9,720 ) $2,509 $7,211 $ (8,608 )

The consolidating statement of operations for BlueLinx Holdings Inc. for the period from December 30, 2012 to
March 30, 2013 follows (in thousands):

BlueLinx
BlueLinx Corporation
Holdings and LLC
Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
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Net sales $— $ 503,153 $6,888 $ (6,888 ) $ 503,153
Cost of sales — 446,695 — — 446,695
Gross profit — 56,458 6,888 (6,888 ) 56,458
Operating expenses (income):

Selling, general, and administrative 1,036 65,109 162 (6,888 ) 59,419
Depreciation and amortization — 1,297 876 — 2,173
Total operating expenses (income) 1,036 66,406 1,038 (6,888 ) 61,592
Operating (loss) income (1,036 ) (9,948 ) 5,850 — (5,134
Non-operating expenses (income):

Interest expense — 3,560 3,632 — 7,192
Other expense (income), net — 111 (1 ) — 110
(Loss) income before provision for income

taxes (1,036 ) (13,619 ) 2219 — (12,436
Provision for income taxes 188 25 — — 213
Equity in (loss) income of subsidiaries (11,425 ) — — 11,425 —

Net (loss) income $(12,649 ) $(13,644 ) $2,219 $11,425 $ (12,649
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The consolidating balance sheet for BlueLinx Holdings Inc. as of April 5, 2014 follows (in thousands):

BlueLinx
BlueLinx  Corporation
Holdings and LLC

Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
Assets:
Current assets:
Cash $37 $ 7,542 $— $— $ 7,579
Receivables — 190,766 — — 190,766
Inventories — 261,006 — — 261,006
Deferred income tax asset, net — — 397 (397 ) —
Other current assets 1,215 21,701 2,840 — 25,756
Intercompany receivable 71,274 30,278 — (101,552 ) —
Total current assets 72,526 511,293 3,237 (101,949 ) 485,107
Property and equipment:
Land and land improvements — 4,047 37,135 — 41,182
Buildings — 10,930 79,242 — 90,172
Machinery and equipment — 76,672 — — 76,672
Construction in progress — 760 — — 760
Property and equipment, at cost — 92,409 116,377 — 208,786
Accumulated depreciation — (65,927 ) (32,417 ) — (98,344 )
Property and equipment, net — 26,482 83,960 — 110,442
Investment in subsidiaries (58,138 ) — — 58,138 —
Non-current deferred income tax assets, net — 1,221 — (397 ) 824
Other non-current assets — 10,969 4,474 — 15,443
Total assets $14,388 $ 549,965 $91,671 $ (44,208 ) $611,816
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $683 $97,325 $— $— $ 98,008
Bank overdrafts — 21,516 — — 21,516
Accrued compensation 33 5,477 — — 5,510
Current maturities of long-term debt — 29,234 8,844 — 38,078
Deferred income taxes, net — 1,220 — (397 ) 823
Other current liabilities — 12,156 258 — 12,414
Intercompany payable 28,058 71,274 2,220 (101,552 ) —
Total current liabilities 28,774 238,202 11,322 (101,949 ) 176,349
Non-current liabilities:
Long-term debt — 232,003 177,291 — 409,294
Non-current deferred income taxes — — 397 (397 ) —
Other non-current liabilities — 40,559 — — 40,559
Total liabilities 28,774 510,764 189,010 (102,346 ) 626,202
Stockholders’ (deficit) equity/Parent’s
Investment (14,386 ) 39,201 (97,339 ) 58,138 (14,386 )
Total liabilities and (deficit) equity $14,388 $ 549,965 $91,671 $ (44,208 ) $611,816
18
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The consolidating balance sheet for BlueLinx Holdings Inc. as of January 4, 2014 follows (in thousands):

Assets:

Current assets:

Cash

Receivables

Inventories

Deferred income tax asset, net
Other current assets

Intercompany receivable

Total current assets

Property and equipment:

Land and land improvements
Buildings

Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress

Property and equipment, at cost
Accumulated depreciation
Property and equipment, net
Investment in subsidiaries
Non-current deferred income tax assets, net
Other non-current assets

Total assets

Liabilities:

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Bank overdrafts

Accrued compensation

Current maturities of long-term debt
Deferred income tax liabilities, net
Other current liabilities
Intercompany payable

Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities:

Long-term debt

Non-current deferred income taxes
Other non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Stockholders’ (deficit) equity/Parent’s
Investment

Total liabilities and (deficit) equity

19

BlueLinx
Holdings
Inc.

$47

(47,735

$21,556

$1,080

27,454

(5,898
$21,556

BlueLinx

Corporation

and

Subsidiaries

$4,987
150,297
223,580
20,208
26,374
425,446

4,040
10,839
73,004
3,028
90,911
(64,557
26,354
) —
1,221
11,768
$464,789

$59,283
19,377
4,173
1,220
11,727
68,454
164,234

211,193

40,323
415,750

) 49,039
$464,789

LLC

Subsidiaries

$—

397
1,816

2,213

37,136
79,243

116,379
(31,614
84,765

4,810
$91,788

$—

9,141

1,222

10,363

177,802
397

188,562

(96,774
$91,788

)

Eliminations Consolidated
$— $ 5,034
— 150,297
— 223,580
(397 ) —
— 22,814
(94,828 ) —
(95,225 ) 401,725
— 41,176
— 90,082
— 73,004
— 3,028
— 207,290
— (96,171 )
— 111,119
47,735 —
(397 ) 824
— 16,578
$47,887 ) $530,246
$— 60,363
— 19,377
— 4,173
— 9,141
(397 ) 823
— 12,949
(94,828 ) —
(95,225 ) 106,826
— 388,995
(397 ) —
— 40,323
(95,622 ) 536,144
47,735 (5,898 )
$47,887 ) $530,246

34



Edgar Filing: BlueLinx Holdings Inc. - Form 10-Q

The consolidating statement of cash flows for BlueLinx Holdings Inc. for the period from January 5, 2014 to April 5,

2014 follows (in thousands):

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net (loss) income

Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income
to cash (used in) provided by operating
activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of debt issue costs

Gain from the sale of properties
Restructuring payments

Share-based compensation expense
Intraperiod income tax allocation related to
the hourly pension plan

Pension expense

Increase in restricted cash related to
insurance and other

Other

Equity (deficit) in earnings of subsidiaries
Intercompany receivable

Intercompany payable

Changes in primary working capital
components:

Receivables
Inventories
Accounts payable
Net cash (used in) provided by operating
activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment in subsidiaries
Property, plant and equipment investments
Proceeds from disposition of assets
Net cash provided by (used in) investing
activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repurchase of shares to satisfy employee
tax withholdings
Repayments on revolving credit facilities
Borrowings on revolving credit facilities
Payments of principal on mortgage
Payments on capital lease obligations

BlueLinx
Holdings

Inc.

$(8,608

(392
7,211
(2,820
1,684
(2,502

)

BlueLinx

Corporation

and

Subsidiaries

$ (9,720

1,549
413
(603
267

(76
225

(1,285
2,040
(3,904
2,820
(8,274

(40,469
(37,426
38,040

(48,129

81
(775
74

(620

(235
(99,146
149,191

(570

LLC
Subsidiaries
) $2,509
803
331
(210 )
-
-
-
(955 )
-
2,220
) 4,698
-
-
) 4,698
3,074 )
) —
209
) (2,865 )
) —
-
(809 )
-

Eliminations
$7.211
115
(7,211 )
6,724
(6,724 )
115
2
117
(117 )
(117 )

Consolidated

$ (8,608 )
2,352
744
(210 )
(603 )
690
(76 )
225
(1,285 )
808
(5,963 )
(40,469 )
(37,426 )
37,743
46,115 )
(775 )
283
(492 )
(456 )
(99,146 )
149,191
(809 )
(570 )
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Increase in bank overdrafts

Increase in restricted cash related to the
mortgage

Proceeds from rights offering, less expenses
paid

Debt issuance costs

Net cash (used in) provided by financing
activities

Increase in cash

Balance, beginning of period

Balance, end of period

Noncash transactions:
Capital leases

20

(98

(319

(10

47
$37

2,139

(75

) 51,304
) 2,555
4,987
$ 7,542

$ 983

— — 2,139
(1,024 ) — (1,024

— (98
— — (75

1,833 ) — 49,152

— — 2,545

— — 5,034
$— $— $ 7,579

$— $— $ 983
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The consolidating statement of cash flows for BlueLinx Holdings Inc. for the period from December 30, 2012 to

March 30, 2013 follows (in thousands):

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net (loss) income

Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income
to cash (used in) provided by operating
activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of debt issue costs

Write off of debt issuance costs

Gain from the sale of properties

Pension expense

Share-based compensation expense
Increase in restricted cash related to
insurance and other

Other

Equity (deficit) in earnings of subsidiaries
Intercompany receivable

Intercompany payable

Changes in primary working capital
components:

Receivables

Inventories

Accounts payable

Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment in subsidiaries

Property, plant and equipment investments
Proceeds from disposition of assets

Net cash (used in) provided by investing
activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Excess tax benefits from share-based
compensation arrangements

Repurchase of shares to satisfy employee
tax withholdings

Repayments on revolving credit facilities
Borrowings on revolving credit facilities
Payments of principal on mortgage
Payments on capital lease obligations

BlueLinx
Holdings
Inc.

$(12,649 )

217
677

(39,364 )

(39,364 )

BlueLinx

Corporation

and

Subsidiaries

$ (13,644

1,297
615
119
1,148
597

(361
(507
(2,575
1,812
(11,499

(61,396
(89,595
64,257

(98,233
37,643
(955

32

36,720

16

(128,836
199,828

(384

LLC
Subsidiaries
) $2,219

876

331

(238 )
-
) (1,081 )
-
) 2,107
) —
) —

(390 )
) 1,717
1,721
-

163
1,884
R

(646 )
-

Eliminations

$11,425
(11,425 )
4,387
(4,387 )

Consolidated

$ (12,649 )
2,173
946
119
(238 )
1,148
824
(361 )
(894 )
(8,932 )
(61,396 )
(89,595 )
64,084
(95,839 )
(955 )
195
(760 )
16
(1,206 )
(128,836 )
199,828
(646 )
(384 )
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Decrease in bank overdrafts — (6,298 ) — — (6,298
Increase in restricted cash related to the

mortgage — — 2,955 ) — (2,955
Debt issuance costs — (2,715 ) — — (2,715
Proceeds from rights offering less expenses

paid 39,892 — — — 39,892
Net cash provided by (used in) financing

activities 38,686 61,611 (3,601 ) — 96,696
Increase in cash (1 ) 98 — — 97
Balance, beginning of period 28 5,160 — — 5,188
Balance, end of period $27 $ 5,258 $— $— $ 5,285

Noncash transactions:
Capital leases $— $— $— $— $—

21



Edgar Filing: BlueLinx Holdings Inc. - Form 10-Q

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The information contained in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations (“MD&A”) has been derived from our historical financial statements and is intended to provide information
to assist you in better understanding and evaluating our financial condition and results of operations. This MD&A
section should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and notes to those statements

included in Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, as well as our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended January 4, 2014 as filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). This MD&A section is
not a comprehensive discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations, but rather updates
disclosures made in the aforementioned filing.

The discussion below contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. These forward-looking
statements include, without limitation, any statement that may predict, forecast, indicate or imply future results,
performance, liquidity levels or achievements, and may contain the words “believe,” “anticipate,” “expect,” “estimate,” “intenc
“project,” “plan,” “will be,” “will likely continue,” “will likely result” or words or phrases of similar meaning. All of these
forward-looking statements are based on estimates and assumptions made by our management that, although believed

by us to be reasonable, are inherently uncertain. Forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties,

including, but not limited to, economic, competitive, governmental and technological factors outside of our control,

that may cause our business, strategy or actual results to differ materially from the forward-looking statements. These

risks and uncertainties may include those discussed under the heading ‘“Risk Factors” in our Annual Report on Form

10-K for the year ended January 4, 2014 as filed with the SEC and other factors, some of which may not be known to

us. We operate in a changing environment in which new risks can emerge from time to time. It is not possible for
management to predict all of these risks, nor can it assess the extent to which any factor, or a combination of factors,

may cause our business, strategy or actual results to differ materially from those contained in forward-looking

statements. Factors you should consider that could cause these differences include, among other things:

99 ¢ 99 ¢

LT3

changes in the prices, supply and/or demand for products which we distribute, especially as a result of conditions in
the residential housing market;

the acceptance by our customers of our privately branded products;
inventory levels of new and existing homes for sale;
general economic and business conditions in the United States;
the financial condition and credit worthiness of our customers;
the activities of competitors;
changes in significant operating expenses;
fuel costs;

risk of losses associated with accidents;
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exposure to product liability claims;
changes in the availability of capital and interest rates;
immigration patterns and job and household formation;
our ability to identify acquisition opportunities and effectively and cost-efficiently integrate acquisitions;

adverse weather patterns or conditions;
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acts of war or terrorist activities, including acts of cyber intrusion;
variations in the performance of the financial markets, including the credit markets; and

the other factors described herein and in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 4, 2014 as
filed with the SEC.

Given these risks and uncertainties, we caution you not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements. We
undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statement as a result of new information,
future events or otherwise, except as required by law.

Overview
Background

We are a leading distributor of building products in North America. We operate in all of the major metropolitan areas
in the United States (“U.S.”) and, as of April 5, 2014, we distributed approximately 10,000 products from over 750
suppliers to service approximately 11,500 customers nationwide, including dealers, industrial manufacturers,
manufactured housing producers and home improvement retailers. We operate our distribution business from sales
centers in Atlanta and Denver, and our network of approximately 50 distribution centers. We distribute products in
two principal categories: structural products and specialty products. Structural products include plywood, oriented
strand board (“OSB”), rebar and remesh, lumber and other wood products primarily used for structural support, walls
and flooring in construction projects. Structural products represented approximately 41% of our first quarter of fiscal
2014 gross sales. Specialty products include roofing, insulation, moulding, engineered wood, vinyl products (used
primarily in siding), outdoor living, and metal products (excluding rebar and remesh). Specialty products accounted
for approximately 59% of our first quarter of fiscal 2014 gross sales.

Industry Conditions

We operate in a changing environment in which new risks can emerge from time to time. A number of factors cause
our results of operations to fluctuate from period to period. Many of these factors are seasonal or cyclical in nature.
Conditions in the U.S. housing market, while improving, continue to be at historically low levels. Additionally, over
the past several years, the mortgage markets have experienced substantial disruption due to an unprecedented number
of defaults. This disruption and the related defaults have increased, compared to historic levels, the inventory of
homes for sale in some markets (some markets have sold through excess inventory now) and also have caused lenders
to tighten mortgage qualification criteria, which further reduces demand for new homes. While now showing signs of
improvement, we expect the lower than historical average level of new housing activity will continue to negatively
impact our operating results. However, along with many forecasters, we believe that we are in the beginning of a
housing recovery and that U.S. housing demand will continue to improve in the long term based on population
demographics and a variety of other factors.

As the housing market and general economic conditions continue to improve, the Company will continue to evaluate
capital structure opportunities that make sense for the Company. The Company’s sales depend heavily on the strength
of national and local new residential construction and home improvement and remodeling markets, which are showing
signs of improvement. The overall housing market and economy are also improving, which is expected to lead to an
increase in residential construction and, to a lesser extent, in home improvement activity. As the Company and its
industry continue to recover from the historic housing market downturn, the Company expects its sales to improve and

41



Edgar Filing: BlueLinx Holdings Inc. - Form 10-Q

therefore its need for inventory and its accounts receivable to increase. This increased need for working capital is
expected to use some of the Company’s current excess availability under its revolving credit facilities.

Facility Lease Obligation and Related Restructuring

During the second quarter of fiscal 2013, we announced the 2013 restructuring which included the realignment of
headquarters resources and the strategic review of our distribution centers. This review resulted in the Company
designating five distribution centers to be sold or closed. These distribution centers were closed or ceased operations
during the third quarter of fiscal 2013. During the second quarter of fiscal 2013, we also announced that George R.
Judd no longer would serve as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company (the “change in executive
leadership”).

23
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During the first quarter of fiscal 2013, we completed the transition of our Fremont, California operation to our new
facility in Stockton, California. We incurred approximately $0.8 million of transition costs related to this move which
are recorded in “Selling, general, and administrative” expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and
Comprehensive Loss in the first nine months of fiscal 2013.

Selected Factors Affecting Our Operating Results

Our operating results are affected by housing starts, mobile home production, industrial production, repair and
remodeling spending and non-residential construction. Our operating results are also impacted by changes in product
prices. Structural product prices can vary significantly based on short-term and long-term changes in supply and
demand. The prices of specialty products can also vary from time to time, although they are generally significantly
less variable than structural products.

The following table sets forth changes in net sales by product category, sales variances due to changes in unit volume
and dollar and percentage changes in unit volume and price versus comparable prior periods, in each case for the first
quarter of fiscal 2014 and the first quarter of fiscal 2013.

Fiscal Fiscal
Q12014 Q12013
(Dollars in millions)
(Unaudited)

Sales by Category
Structural Products $185 $233
Specialty Products 264 271
Other(1) ® ) (1 )
Total Sales $444 $503
Sales Variances
Unit Volume $ Change $(18 ) $9
Price/Other(2) 41 ) 40
Total $ Change $(59 ) $49
Unit Volume % Change (3.8 )% 2.1 %
Price/Other(1) (8.0 )% 8.8 %
Total % Change (11.8 )% 10.9 %

(D) “Other” includes unallocated allowances, discounts and the impact of closed centers.

(2)“Other” includes unallocated allowances, discounts and the impact of unit volume changes related to the five
distribution centers closed as part of the 2013 restructuring.

The following table sets forth changes in gross margin dollars and percentage changes by product category, and
percentage changes in unit volume growth by product, in each case for the first quarter of fiscal 2014 and the first
quarter of fiscal 2013.

Fiscal Fiscal
Q1 2014 Q1 2013
Gross Margin $’s by (Dollars in millions)
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Category

Structural Products

Specialty Products

Other (1)

Total Gross Margin $’s

Gross Margin %’s by Category
Structural Products

Specialty Products

Total Gross Margin %’s

Unit Volume Change by Product(2)
Structural Products

Specialty Products

Total Change in Unit Volume %’s

24

$15
34

$53
8.1
12.9
11.9
9.5

1.0
(3.8

(Unaudited)

$20

35

1

$56

% 8.6
% 129
% 112

Y% 3.0

% 1.5

Y% 2.1

%
%
%

%

%
%

44



Edgar Filing: BlueLinx Holdings Inc. - Form 10-Q

(D) “Other” includes unallocated allowances and discounts.
(2) This excludes the impact of unit volume changes related to the five distribution centers closed as part of the 2013
restructuring.

The following table sets forth changes in net sales and gross margin by channel and percentage changes in gross
margin by channel, in each case for the first quarter of fiscal 2014 and the first quarter of fiscal 2013.

Fiscal Fiscal
Q12014 Q12013
(Dollars in millions)

(Unaudited)
Sales by Channel
Warehouse/Reload $357 $399
Direct 92 105
Other(1) ® ) (1 )
Total $444 $503
Gross Margin by Channel
Warehouse/Reload $43 $49
Direct 6 6
Other(1) 4 1
Total $53 $56
Gross Margin % by Channel
Warehouse/Reload 12.0 % 12.3 %
Direct 6.5 % 5.7 %
Total 11.9 % 112 %

(1) “Other” includes unallocated allowances and adjustments.

Fiscal Year

Fiscal 2014 contains 52 weeks, fiscal 2013 contained 53 weeks and fiscal 2012 contained 52 weeks. Our fiscal
quarters are based on a 5-4-4 week period, with the exception of the fourth fiscal quarter of fiscal years containing 53
weeks, which are based on a 5-4-5 week period.

Results of Operations

First Quarter of Fiscal 2014 Compared to First Quarter of Fiscal 2013

The following table sets forth our results of operations for the first quarter of fiscal 2014 and first quarter of fiscal
2013.

% of First Quarter % of
First Net of Net
Quarter of  Sales Fiscal 2013 Sales
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Fiscal

2014

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands)
Net sales $443,944 100.0 % $ 503,153 100.0
Gross profit 52,676 11.9 % 56,458 11.2
Selling, general, and administrative 51,987 11.7 % 59,419 11.8
Depreciation and amortization 2,352 0.5 % 2,173 0.4
Operating loss (1,663 ) (04 )% (5,134 ) (1.0
Interest expense, net 6,454 1.5 % 7,192 1.4
Other expense, net 160 0.0 % 110 0.0
Loss before provision for income taxes 8,277 ) (1.9 )% (12,436 ) (2.5
Provision for income taxes 331 0.1 % 213 0.0
Net loss $(8,608 ) (1.9 Y $ (12,649 ) (2.5

25



Edgar Filing: BlueLinx Holdings Inc. - Form 10-Q

Net sales. For the first quarter of fiscal 2014, net sales decreased by 11.8%, or $59.2 million, to $443.9 million. Sales
during the quarter were negatively impacted by unusually cold weather conditions. Structural sales decreased by
$48.0 million, or 20.6%, compared to the first quarter of fiscal 2013. This decrease is primarily due to a decrease in
structural product prices and other changes of 11.1%. In addition, the change in structural sales is due to a decrease in
unit volumes of 9.5%, which excludes the impact of the five distribution centers closed as part of the 2013
restructuring. Specialty sales decreased by $7.3 million, or 2.7%, from a year ago. This change was primarily a result
of a decrease in specialty product prices and other changes of 3.7%. The change in specialty sales prices was partially
offset by an increase in specialty unit volumes of 1.0%, which excludes the impact from the five distribution centers
closed as part of the 2013 restructuring. Approximately $29.5 million of the decrease in sales is related to the five
distribution centers closed as a result of the 2013 restructuring.

Gross profit. Gross profit for the first quarter of fiscal 2014 was $52.7 million, or 11.9% of sales, compared to $56.5
million, or 11.2% of sales, in the prior year period. The decrease in gross profit dollars compared to the first quarter of
fiscal 2013 was driven by a decrease in volume partially offset by a favorable variance in our gross margin
percentage. Our overall gross margin percentage was higher due to a greater percentage of our sales being comprised
of higher gross margin specialty products and a $1.4 million reduction to cost of sales recorded during the first quarter
of fiscal 2014, related to the recovery of countervailing and antidumping duties.

Selling, general, and administrative expenses. Selling, general, and administrative expenses were $52.0 million, or
11.7% of net sales, for the first quarter of fiscal 2014, compared to $59.4 million, or 11.8% of net sales, a $7.4 million
decrease compared to the first quarter of fiscal 2013. This decrease in selling, general, and administrative expenses
was primarily due to a decrease in variable costs such as third party freight due to a decrease in unit volume of 3.8%.
In addition, there was a decrease in payroll, commissions, and payroll related costs of $5.9 million primarily related to
a reduced headcount from the 2013 restructuring and change in executive leadership.

Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization expense totaled $2.4 million for the first quarter of
fiscal 2014, compared to $2.2 million for the first quarter of fiscal 2013.

Operating loss. Operating loss for the first quarter of fiscal 2014 was $1.7 million, or 0.4% of sales, compared to
operating loss of $5.1 million, or 1.0% of sales, in the first quarter of fiscal 2013, reflecting a decrease in selling,
general, and administrative expense of $7.4 million partially offset by a decrease in gross profit dollars of $3.8
million.

Interest expense. Interest expense totaled $6.5 million for the first quarter of fiscal 2014 compared to $7.2 million for
the first quarter of fiscal 2013. The $0.7 million decrease is largely due to a $0.3 million decrease in interest expense
incurred on our mortgage as a result of principal reductions, a $0.1 million decrease in interest related to our revolving
credit facilities, a $0.2 million decrease in amortization of debt fees and a $0.1 million decrease in the write-off of
debt issuance costs. Interest expense included $0.7 million of debt issuance costs amortization for the first quarter of
fiscal 2013 and $0.9 million for the first quarter of fiscal 2013. During the first quarter of fiscal 2014, interest expense
related to our revolving credit facilities and mortgage was $2.6 million and $3.0 million, respectively. During the first
quarter of fiscal 2013, interest expense related to our revolving credit facilities and mortgage was $2.7 million and
$3.3 million, respectively. See “Liquidity and Capital Resources” below for a description of agreements for the
revolving credit facilities and the mortgage.

Benefit from income taxes. The effective tax rate was (4.0)% and (1.7)% for the first quarter of fiscal 2014 and the
first quarter of fiscal 2013, respectively. The unusual effective tax rate in both periods is primarily driven by a full

valuation allowance recorded against our year to date federal and state tax benefit. In addition, we recorded tax
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expense related to gross receipts, Canadian and certain state taxes. Also, during the first quarter of fiscal 2014, we
allocated income tax expense to accumulated other comprehensive loss to the extent income was recorded in
accumulated other comprehensive loss resulting in a benefit to continuing operations.

Net loss. Net loss for the first quarter of fiscal 2014 was $8.6 million compared to net loss of $12.6 million for the
first quarter of fiscal 2013 as a result of the above factors.

On a per-share basis, basic and diluted loss applicable to common stockholders for the first quarter of fiscal 2014 and
for the first quarter of fiscal 2013 was $0.10 and $0.19, respectively.

Seasonality

We are exposed to fluctuations in quarterly sales volumes and expenses due to seasonal factors. These seasonal factors
are common in the building products distribution industry. The first and fourth quarters are typically our slowest
quarters due to the impact of poor weather on the construction market. Our second and third quarters are typically our
strongest quarters, reflecting a substantial increase in construction due to more favorable weather conditions. Our
working capital and accounts receivable and payable generally peak in the third quarter, while inventory generally
peaks in the second quarter in anticipation of the summer building season.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

We depend on cash flow from operations and funds available under our revolving credit facilities to finance working
capital needs and capital expenditures. We had approximately $87.7 million of excess availability under our U.S.
revolving credit facility and $1.6 million under our Canadian revolving credit facility, described further below, as of
April 5, 2014. As of April 5, 2014, under the U.S. revolving credit facility, we are required to maintain a fixed charge
coverage ratio of 1.1 to 1.0 in the event our excess availability falls below the greater of $33.2 million during the time
the $20.0 million increase, described further below in “Debt and Credit Sources”, is outstanding and $31.8 million at all
times thereafter, or the amount equal to 12.5% of the lesser of the borrowing base or $467.5 million during the time
the $20.0 million increase is outstanding, and $447.5 million at all times thereafter (the “Excess Availability
Threshold”). If we fail to maintain this minimum excess availability, the U.S. revolving credit facility requires us to
(i) maintain certain financial ratios, which we would not meet with current operating results, and (ii) limit our capital
expenditures, which would have a negative impact on our ability to finance working capital needs and capital
expenditures. In the event that excess availability falls below $38.7 million during the time the $20.0 million increase
is outstanding and $37.1 million at all times thereafter, or the amount equal to 15% of the lesser of the borrowing base
or $467.5 million during the time the $20.0 million increase is outstanding, and $447.5 million at all times thereafter,
the U.S. revolving credit facility gives the lenders the right, but not the obligation, to dominion over our bank
accounts. This would not make the underlying debt callable by the lender and may not change our ability to borrow
on the U.S. revolving credit facility. However, we would be required to reclassify the “Long-term debt” to “Current
maturities of long-term debt” on our Consolidated Balance Sheet. For additional information regarding our financial
covenants under our revolving credit facilities, see the Risk Factors “The instruments governing our indebtedness
contain various covenants limiting the discretion of our management in operating our business” set forth under Item
1.A. Risk Factors in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 4, 2014, as filed with the SEC.

Excess availability may decrease while our industry and the Company continue to participate in the recovery of the
housing market. While the Company believes that the amounts currently available from its revolving credit facilities
and other sources will be sufficient to fund its routine operations and capital requirements for at least the next

12 months, the Company believes that additional capital will provide it with a stronger liquidity position and allow it
to more fully participate in the improving housing market.

The following tables indicate our working capital and cash flows for the periods indicated.
April 5,

2014 January 4, 2014
(Dollars in thousands)

(Unaudited)
Working capital $308,758 $ 294,899
Period
from
January 5,
2014 to Period from
April 5, December 30, 2012
2014 to March 30, 2013
(Dollars in thousands)
(Unaudited)
Cash flows used in operating activities $46,115 ) $ (95,839 )
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Cash flows used in investing activities (492 ) (760 )
Cash flows provided by financing activities 49,152 96,696
Working Capital

Working capital increased by $13.9 million to $308.8 million at April 5, 2014 from $294.9 million at January 4,

2014. The increase in working capital reflected an increase in receivables and inventories of $40.5 million and $37.4
million, respectively. The increases are primarily attributable to an increase in demand and seasonal payment patterns.
The increases are partially offset by increases in current maturities of long-term debt, accounts payable, and bank
overdrafts of $28.9 million, $37.7 million, and $2.1 million, respectively. The increase in accounts payable and bank
overdrafts is primarily due to the timing of payments. The increase in current maturities of long term debt is primarily
attributable to the increase in the current portion of our revolver of $20.0 million related to the amendment executed
during the first quarter of fiscal 2014.
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Operating Activities

During the first quarter of fiscal 2014, cash flows used in operating activities totaled $46.1 million. The primary
drivers of cash flow used in operations were an increase in accounts receivable of $40.5 million, an increase in
inventories of $37.4 million and a net loss, as adjusted for non-cash charges, of $3.7 million. These cash outflows
were partially offset by an increase in accounts payable of $37.7 million. Refer to the Working Capital section above
for further discussion of these items.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2013, cash flows used in operating activities totaled $95.8 million. The primary
drivers of cash flow used in operations were increases in accounts receivable of $61.4 million reflecting increased
revenue resulting from an increase in demand and seasonal payment patterns, an increase in inventories of $89.6
million due to an increase in purchases to meet increased demand and a net loss, as adjusted for non-cash charges, of
$5.0 million. These cash outflows were offset by an increase in accounts payable of $64.1 million due to an increase
in purchase volume associated with increased demand. This change in accounts payable was classified net of $1.3
million of expenses accrued but not yet paid for the 2013 Rights Offering, which were classified in cash flows from
financing activities.

Investing Activities

During the first quarter of fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2013, cash flows used in investing activities totaled $0.5 million and
$0.8 million, respectively.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2013, our expenditures for property and equipment were $0.8 million
and $1.0 million, respectively. These expenditures were primarily to purchase information technology, leasehold
improvements, and certain machinery and equipment. The majority of our capital expenditures for fiscal 2014 and
fiscal 2013 has been and likely will continue to be paid from our revolving credit facility.

Proceeds from the disposition of property totaled $0.3 million and $0.2 million for the first quarter of fiscal 2014 and
the first quarter of fiscal 2013, respectively. The proceeds from disposition of assets in the first quarter of fiscal 2014
and in the first quarter of fiscal 2013 were primarily related to gains at our Fremont, California location. The gains
were related to proceeds previously held in an escrow account for certain remediation procedures.

Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities was $49.2 million and $96.7 million during the first quarter of fiscal 2014
and the first quarter of fiscal 2013, respectively. The net cash provided by financing activities in the first quarter of
fiscal 2014 primarily reflected a net increase in the balance of our revolving credit facility of $50.0 million and bank
overdrafts of $2.1 million. These increases were partially offset by increases in our restricted cash related to the
mortgage of $1.0 million and payments of principal on the mortgage of $0.8 million. The net cash provided by
financing activities in the first quarter of fiscal 2013 primarily reflected a net increase in the balance of our revolving
credit facility of $71.0 million and net proceeds from the 2013 Rights Offering of $39.9 million. These increases were
partially offset by a decrease in bank overdrafts of $6.3 million, increases in our restricted cash related to the mortgage
of $3.0 million and cash paid for debt financing costs of $2.7 million.

Debt and Credit Sources
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Our U.S. revolving credit facility is with several lenders including Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, successor
by merger to Wachovia Bank, National Association, dated August 4, 2006, as amended. The U.S. revolving credit
facility has a final maturity of April 15, 2016 and maximum available credit of $467.5 million. The U.S. revolving
credit facility also includes an additional $75 million uncommitted accordion credit facility, which permits us to
increase the maximum available credit up to $522.5 million.

On March 14, 2014, we entered into an amendment to our U.S. revolving credit facility, in the form of a separate
tranche, which became effective on that date. The most significant of the changes included in the amendment is the
addition of up to $20.0 million in borrowing capacity for a period of up to 180 days from the effective date, which
increased the maximum available credit of the U.S. revolving credit facility to $467.5 million. This additional
available credit of $20.0 million was utilized in the first quarter of fiscal 2014. In conjunction with this amendment,
we incurred $0.1 million of debt fees that were capitalized and are being amortized over the 180 day term. In
addition, pursuant to the new $20.0 million tranche, specific adjustments were made to the excess availability
threshold calculation, the interest rate, and the fixed charge coverage ratio.
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On June 28, 2013, we entered into an amendment to our U.S. revolving credit facility, which became effective on that
date and pursuant to which certain components of the borrowing base calculation and excess liquidity calculation were
adjusted. The most significant of the changes included in the amendment is the addition of PNC Bank, National
Association as a lender and their additional loan commitment of $25.0 million, which at that time increased the
maximum availability under the U.S. revolving credit facility to $447.5 million. The terms of this amended agreement
are described below. In conjunction with this amendment, we incurred $0.1 million of debt fees that were capitalized
and are being amortized over the amended debt term.

On March 29, 2013, we entered into an amendment to our U.S. revolving credit facility, which became effective on
that date and pursuant to which certain components of the borrowing base calculation and excess liquidity calculation
were adjusted. The most significant of the changes included in the amendment are extending the final maturity of our
U.S. revolving credit facility, increasing the maximum available credit under the facility and adjusting the excess
availability threshold calculation. In conjunction with this amendment, we incurred $2.8 million of debt fees that
were capitalized and are being amortized over the amended debt term.

On March 27, 2013, we concluded the 2013 Rights Offering. The 2013 Rights Offering was fully subscribed and
resulted in net proceeds of approximately $38.6 million. We issued 22.9 million shares of stock to our stockholders in
conjunction with the 2013 Rights Offering.

As of April 5, 2014, we had outstanding borrowings of $258.4 million and excess availability of $87.7 million under
the terms of our U.S. revolving credit facility. The interest rate on the U.S. revolving credit facility was 3.8% at April
5, 2014, including the impact of the $20.0 million tranche. As of January 4, 2014, we had outstanding borrowings of
$207.9 million and excess availability of $44.5 million under the terms of our U.S. revolving credit facility. The
interest rate on the U.S. revolving credit facility was 3.7% at January 4, 2014. As of April 5, 2014 and January 4,
2014, we had outstanding letters of credit totaling $3.6 million, respectively, for the purposes of securing collateral
related to guaranteeing lease and certain other obligations. The $3.6 million in outstanding letters of credit as of April
5, 2014 does not include an additional $1.5 million fully collateralized letter of credit securing certain insurance
obligations that was issued outside of the U.S. revolving credit facility.

As of April 5, 2014, our U.S. revolving credit facility, as amended, contains customary negative covenants and
restrictions for asset based loans, including a requirement that we maintain a fixed charge coverage ratio of 1.1 to 1.0
in the event our excess availability falls below the greater of $33.2 million during the time the $20.0 million increase
is outstanding, and $31.8 million at all times thereafter, or the amount equal to 12.5% of the lesser of the borrowing
base or $467.5 million during the time the $20.0 million increase is outstanding, and $447.5 million at all times
thereafter. The fixed charge coverage ratio is calculated as EBITDA divided by the sum of cash payments for income
taxes, interest expense, cash dividends, principal payments on debt, and capital expenditures. EBITDA is defined as
BlueLinx Corporation’s net income before interest and tax expense, depreciation and amortization expense, and other
non-cash charges. The fixed charge coverage ratio requirement only applies to us when excess availability under our
amended U.S. revolving credit facility is less than the Excess Availability Threshold on any date. As of April 5, 2014
and through the time of the filing of this Form 10-Q, we were in compliance with all covenants under the U.S.
revolving credit facility. We are required to maintain the Excess Availability Threshold in order to avoid being
required to meet certain financial ratios and triggering additional limits on capital expenditures. Our lowest level of
fiscal month-end availability for the twelve month period ended April 5, 2014 was $44.5 million. We do not
anticipate our excess availability in fiscal 2014 will drop below the Excess Availability Threshold. Should our excess
availability fall below the Excess Availability Threshold on any date, however, we would not meet the required fixed
charge coverage ratio covenant with our current operating results.
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In the event that excess availability falls below $38.7 million during the time the $20.0 million increase is

outstanding, and $37.1 million at all times thereafter or the amount equal to 15% of the lesser of the borrowing base or
$467.5 million during the time the $20.0 million increase is outstanding, and $447.5 million at all times thereafter, the
U.S. revolving credit facility gives the lenders the right to dominion of our bank accounts. This would not make the
underlying debt callable by the lender and may not change our ability to borrow on the U.S. revolving credit

facility. However, we would be required to reclassify the “Long-term debt” to “Current maturities of long-term debt” on
our Consolidated Balance Sheet. In addition, we would be required to maintain a springing lock-box arrangement
where customer remittances go directly to a lock-box maintained by our lenders and then are forwarded to our general
bank accounts. Our U.S. revolving credit facility does not contain a subjective acceleration clause, which would allow
our lenders to accelerate the scheduled maturities of our debt or to cancel our agreement.

Our subsidiary BlueLinx Building Products Canada Ltd. (“BlueLinx Canada”) has a revolving credit agreement (the

“Canadian revolving credit facility””) with Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce (as successor to CIBC Asset-Based
Lending Inc.) and the other signatories thereto, as lender, administrative agent and collateral agent, dated August 12,

2011, as amended.

As of April 5, 2014, we had outstanding borrowings of $2.8 million and excess availability of $1.6 million under the
terms of our Canadian revolving credit facility. As of January 4, 2014, we had outstanding borrowings of $3.3 million
and excess availability of $1.3 million under the terms of our Canadian revolving credit facility. The interest rate on
the Canadian revolving credit facility was 4.0% at April 5, 2014 and January 4, 2014. The Canadian revolving credit
facility contains customary covenants and events of default for asset-based credit agreements of this type, including
the requirement for BlueLinx Canada to maintain a minimum adjusted tangible net worth of $3.9 million and for that
entity’s capital expenditures not to exceed 120% of the amount budgeted in a given year. As of April 5, 2014 and
through the time of the filing of this Form 10-Q, we were in compliance with all covenants under this facility.
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Under the terms of our mortgage, we are required to transfer certain funds to be held as collateral. On September 19,
2012, we entered into an amendment to our mortgage agreement, which provided for the immediate prepayment of
approximately $11.8 million of the indebtedness under the mortgage agreement without incurring a prepayment
premium from cash currently held as collateral under the mortgage agreement. In addition, on the last business day of
each calendar quarter, starting with the fourth quarter of fiscal 2012, additional funds held as collateral under the
mortgage agreement are used to prepay indebtedness under the mortgage agreement, without prepayment premium, up
to an aggregate additional prepayment of $10.0 million. Thereafter, any cash remaining in the collateral account
under the mortgage agreement, up to an aggregate of $10.0 million, is released to the Company on the last business
day of each calendar quarter through the third quarter of fiscal 2014. All funds released pursuant to these provisions
may only be used by the Company to pay for usual and customary operating expenses. During the periods described
above in which cash in the collateral account is used to either prepay indebtedness under the mortgage agreement or
released to the Company, the lenders will not release any of the cash collateral to the Company for specified capital
expenditures as previously provided under the mortgage agreement. Approximately $3.1 million of cash held in
collateral were released to the Company during the first quarter of fiscal 2014 to pay for usual and customary
operating expenses. We expect to transfer approximately $13.3 million as collateral during the next twelve month
period, approximately $1.3 million of which will be remitted to us on a quarterly basis to pay for usual and customary
operating expenses, in accordance with the mortgage agreement.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2013, we sold our sales center in Denver, Colorado and increased the restricted cash
related to our mortgage by $8.4 million, which represents the allocated mortgage related to the property. During the
fourth quarter of fiscal 2013, we sold our Sioux Falls, South Dakota facility and increased the restricted cash related to
our mortgage by $1.9 million, which represents the allocated mortgage related to the property. This restricted cash for
both locations was used to pay down the outstanding principal of the mortgage in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013.

We intend to ensure that we have a solid capital structure to provide runway for the Company as our markets recover.
We will continue to accelerate our emphasis on our working capital metrics and management. Growing markets,
however, typically necessitate increased working capital, and we want to have the flexibility to take advantage of
opportunities as the market recovery occurs. We will continue to evaluate capital structure opportunities that make
sense for the Company.

Contractual Obligations

On March 14, 2014, we entered into an amendment to our U.S. revolving credit facility, which became effective on
that date. The most significant of the changes included in the amendment is the addition of up to $20.0 million in
borrowing capacity for a period of up to 180 days from the effective date, which increased the maximum availability
of the U.S. revolving credit facility to $467.5 million. In conjunction with this amendment, we incurred $0.1 million
of debt fees that were capitalized and are being amortized over the 180 day term.

There have been no material changes to our contractual obligations from those disclosed above or in Item 7 of our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 4, 2014.

Critical Accounting Policies
The preparation of our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles requires our management to make judgments and estimates that affect the amounts

reported in our consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. There have been no material changes to
our accounting policies from the information provided in Item 7 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
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year ended January 4, 2014.

New Accounting Standards

In the third quarter of fiscal 2013, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) issued an amendment to
previously issued guidance which requires entities to present unrecognized tax benefits as a decrease in a net operating
loss, a similar tax loss or a tax credit carryforward, if certain criteria are met. The determination of whether a deferred
tax asset is available is based on the unrecognized tax benefit and the deferred tax asset that exists at the reporting date
and presumes disallowance of the tax position at the reporting date. The amendment, which did not materially impact
our financial statements, is effective for public companies in fiscal years, and interim periods within those years,
beginning after December 15, 2013. We have adopted this guidance during the first quarter of fiscal 2014.

There were no other accounting pronouncements adopted during the first quarter of fiscal 2014 that had a material
impact on our financial statements.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
There have been no material changes in market risk from the information provided in Part II, Item 7A “Quantitative
and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January

4,2014.

30

56



Edgar Filing: BlueLinx Holdings Inc. - Form 10-Q

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Our management performed an evaluation, as of the end of the period covered by this report on Form 10-Q, under the
supervision of our chief executive officer and chief financial officer of the effectiveness of the design and operation of
our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities and Exchange

Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”)). Based on that evaluation, our chief executive officer and chief financial
officer have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that information required to

be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and is accumulated and communicated to our
management including our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure.

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the period covered by this report that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting.

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During the first quarter of fiscal 2014, there were no material changes to our previously disclosed legal proceedings.
Additionally, we are, and from time to time may be, a party to routine legal proceedings incidental to the operation of
our business. The outcome of any pending or threatened proceedings is not expected to have a material adverse effect
on our financial condition, operating results or cash flows, based on our current understanding of the relevant facts.
Legal expenses incurred related to these contingencies are generally expensed as incurred.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

There has been no material changes in our risk factors from those disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended January 4, 2014 as filed with the SEC.

ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

On May 8, 2014, BlueLinx Corporation (the “Operating Company’), a wholly-owned subsidiary of BlueLinx Holdings
Inc. (“BlueLinx” or the “Company”) announced that Ms. Susan C. O’Farrell has accepted an offer to serve as Senior Vice
President, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Principal Accounting Officer, effective as of May 19, 2014.

Ms. O’Farrell, age 50, has been a senior financial executive holding several roles with The Home Depot since 1999. As
the Vice President of Finance, she led teams supporting the retail organization. Most recently, she was responsible for
the finance function for The Home Depot’s At Home Services Group. Ms. O’Farrell began her career with Andersen
Consulting, LLP, leaving as an Associate Partner in 1996 for a strategic information systems role with AGL
Resources. Ms. O’Farrell has a B.S. in business administration from Auburn University.

In connection with the hiring of Ms. O’Farrell, the Operating Company and Ms. O’Farrell have entered into an
Employment Agreement dated May 5, 2014 and effective May 19, 2014, memorializing the terms of Ms. O’Farrell’s
employment as Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Principal Accounting Officer. The
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Employment Agreement provides that Ms. O’Farrell will receive a base salary of $400,000 per year, subject to increase
at the discretion of the Company. Ms. O’Farrell shall also be eligible to receive an annual bonus pursuant to the terms
of BlueLinx’ Short-Term Incentive Plan (“STIP”), with the annual bonus potential to be a target of 65% of her base
salary, based upon satisfaction of performance goals and bonus criteria to be defined and approved by the
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company in advance for each fiscal year. In respect to
2014 only, Ms. O’Farrell will receive a guaranteed bonus in an amount equal to no less than $260,000, which bonus
will be paid, subject to certain conditions, provided Ms. O’Farrell is employed by the Company on January 1, 2015.
Upon commencing employment, Ms. O’Farrell will receive 400,000 shares of restricted stock, which shares will vest
in three equal installments on the first, second and third anniversary of the grant date. In addition, Ms. O’Farrell will
receive an additional payment of $75,000 on or about June 9, 2014. The Employment Agreement provides that Ms.
O’Farrell is eligible to participate in all benefit programs for which senior executives are generally eligible, including
the Company’s long-term incentive plans.

The Employment Agreement will expire on May 19, 2016, but will be automatically renewed for successive one-year
terms unless 90-days’ prior written notice is given by either party in advance of the expiration date of any such
extended term. If Ms. O’Farrell’s employment is terminated without “cause” or she resigns for “good reason,” each as
described in the Employment Agreement, Ms. O’Farrell will be entitled to, among other things (i) payment equal to
one time her annual base salary in effect immediately prior to the date of termination, (ii) payment of a pro-rata
portion of her annual target bonus for the performance year in which the termination occurs, (iii) all unvested
time-vested restricted stock grants will automatically vest and become non-forfeitable, and (iv) all unvested
performance-vested performance share or restricted stock grants will remain outstanding and will vest and become
non-forfeitable in accordance with their terms as if Ms. O’Farrell remained employed.

Under the Employment Agreement, in the event Ms. O’Farrell’s employment is terminated in connection with a change
in control of the Company, Ms. O’Farrell will be entitled to receive, among other things, a payment equal to two times
her annual base salary in effect immediately prior to the date of termination.

The Employment Agreement also contains customary confidentiality and non-solicitation provisions, as well as a
covenant not to compete during the employment term and continuing for a period of one year following her date of
termination in the event Ms. O’Farrell is terminated without cause, she voluntarily resigns or resigns for good reason,
or the employment period ends.

The foregoing description is qualified in its entirety by reference to the Employment Agreement, a copy of which is
filed herewith as Exhibit 10.2 and incorporated herein by reference.

Other than the Employment Agreement, there are no arrangements or understandings between Ms. O’Farrell and any
other persons pursuant to which she was selected as an officer of the Company.

Effective as of May 18, 2014, Mr. H. Douglas Goforth no longer will serve as Senior Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer, Treasurer and Principal Accounting Officer of the Company. Mr. Goforth is expected to serve in an advisory
capacity through June 1, 2014 in order to assist with the transition.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Number  Description

Seventh Amendment to Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement, dated March 14, 2014, by
and among Wells Fargo Bank, National Associations, the Lenders named therein, BlueLinx Corporation,
BlueLinx Florida LP, BlueLinx Florida Holding No. 1 Inc. and BlueLinx Florida Holding No. 2 Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed March 17, 2014).

10.1

10.2*  Employment Agreement between BlueLinx Corporation and Susan C. O’Farrell, dated May 5, 2014.
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2  Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.2  Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
101 The following financial information from the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended April 5, 2014, formatted in Extensible Business Reporting Language (“XBRL”):
(i) Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss, (ii) Consolidated Balance Sheets, (iii)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and (iv) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited).**
* Filed herewith.
wE Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, these interactive data files are deemed not to be “filed” or part of a
registration statement or prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, or Section 18 of the Securities Act of 1934, as amended, and otherwise are not subject to

liability under these sections.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrants have duly caused this report to be
signed on their behalf by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.
BlueLinx Holdings Inc.
(Registrant)
Date: May 8, 2014 By:/s/ H. Douglas Goforth

H. Douglas Goforth
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
Number  Description

Seventh Amendment to Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement, dated March 14, 2014, by
and among Wells Fargo Bank, National Associations, the Lenders named therein, BlueLinx Corporation,
BlueLinx Florida LP, BlueLinx Florida Holding No. 1 Inc. and BlueLinx Florida Holding No. 2 Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed March 17, 2014).

10.1

10.2*  Employment Agreement between BlueLinx Corporation and Susan C. O’Farrell, dated May 5, 2014.
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2  Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.2  Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
101 The following financial information from the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly
period ended April 5, 2014, formatted in Extensible Business Reporting Language (“XBRL”):
(i) Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss, (ii) Consolidated Balance Sheets, (iii)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and (iv) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited).**
* Filed herewith.
wE Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulation S-T, these interactive data files are deemed not to be “filed” or part of a
registration statement or prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, or Section 18 of the Securities Act of 1934, as amended, and otherwise are not subject to

liability under these sections.
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